
 1 

Windham Water Pollution 
Control Authority 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 
Jan. 24, 2012 
 
 
The Windham Water Pollution Control Authority held its meeting on January 24, 2012 in 
the Windham Wastewater Treatment Conference Room.  Chairman Rene Goss called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  Members in attendance were Stanley Morytko, Nita 
Giordano, Mary Burnore, Rene Goss and new member Patricia Lein.  Also in attendance 
was Plant Superintendent David Garand.  Members welcomed Ms. Lein to the board. 
 
I) Public Comment 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
II) Waiver of Sewer Connection Fees requested for the Magnet School. 
 
Tom DeVivo, Chairman of the Magnet School Building Committee and David 
Walencewicz, also a member of the Building Committee, petitioned the WPCA to waive 
sewer connection fees for the Magnet School.  Mr. DeVivo said they have had to make 
some cutbacks because school construction costs are over budget.  He identified some of 
the items that had to be cut from the project.  He said they are asking the WPCA for a 
waiver, or grant, regarding sewer connection fees.  He said they have talked to Town 
Attorney Rich Cody who determined that it would be easier to ask for a grant opposed to 
requesting a waiver. 
 
Plant Superintendent Dave Garand explained the purpose of the sewer connection fees is 
to recover expenses at the sewer treatment facility.  He said State Statutes are very 
specific regarding the classification of users.  He read aloud Section 7-267 of the Conn. 
Statutes regarding “use of funds”.  All benefit assessments and charges for connection 
with, or use of the sewerage system, whether pledged for payment of bonds or notes or 
otherwise, shall be kept separate from other funds of the municipality and shall be used 
for the sewerage system; including the payment of debt incurred for the sewerage system 
and interest therein, and for no other purpose. 
 
Chairman Rene Goss said the Magnet School Building Committee’s intent is for the 
WPCA to bill the Magnet School the estimated cost of $56,700., and then agree to fund 
some equipment, namely wind turbines.  This would actually result in a wash.  DeVivo 
then distributed photos of the wind turbines. 
 



 2 

Plant Superintendent Garand said the WPCA has already encountered some expenses for 
the school.  It was determined that the property would not support a well and a septic 
system at the time when the Building Committee was unable to secure an easement to 
their property.  Garand said the WPCA upgraded a pump station (at a cost of $25,000.) to 
handle the extra flow from the school.  In essence the WPCA has made a $25,000 
contribution to the school project.    
 
 He then referred to State Statutes which outline municipal properties.  These properties 
are charged the same as other business users, he said. 
 
Mr. DeVivo said the goal of the Magnet School is to provide strength to the existing 
Windham School System.  The majority of the students would come from Windham, as 
well as from surrounding towns.  
 
Plant Superintendent Garand said the first step would be to check on the legality of using 
funds.  He said the Statutes are very clear as to what the funds can be used for.  Member 
Stan Morytko said it is not fair to ask rate payers to fund the project.   
 
Garand said the WPCA would be willing to support a program bringing Magnet School 
students to the Sewer Treatment Plant as an educational, learning experience.   He said he 
would be willing to work with the Magnet School to develop a program that could to be 
added to their curriculum. 
 
Mr. DeVivo and Mr.Walencewicz both thanked the WPCA for taking the time to discuss 
their request.  They agreed to continue their research and return to the WPCA at a future 
meeting. 
 
III) Correspondence 
 
Chairman Rene Goss said water/sewer bills are being mailed without return envelopes.  
He said he went to Town Hall to obtain more information. 
 
IV) Approval of Minutes  
 
The minutes of November 22, 2011 were amended to add “there were no blockages in the 
lines”.  Stanley Morytko made a motion to approve the minutes as amended and Mary 
Burnore seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The minutes of December 27, 2011 were approved.  Motion by Mary Burnore and 
seconded by Nita Giordano.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
V) Magnet School Request for Grant/Waiver. 
 
Mary Burnore made a motion directing the Plant Superintendent to contact Town 
Attorney Rich Cody about the legality of providing a grant that does not benefit the sewer 
system. Nita Giordano seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 



 3 

 
VI) Reports 
 
a) Chairman’s Report 
  
Chairman Rene Goss said the Charter Revision Committee is meeting this evening.  He 
said they are considering making the Town Finance Dept. responsible for a single, 
transparent all funds budget within the Town of Windham including the WPCA.  The 
WPCA authorized Plant Superintendent Garand to talk with Town Attorney Rich Cody 
regarding possible changes to the Town Charter. 
 
b) Plant Superintendent’s Report 
 
Construction 
 
a) The Clean Water Fund Interim Funding Obligation was closed today.  The repayment 
method chosen (Level Principal) will save over $200,000. in interest over the 20-year 
loan.  Garand said contractors are working on punch list completion.  Secondary Clarifier 
#1 is off line for new equipment coatings application.  All submerged surfaces need to be 
scheduled for removal of failed paint and for the paint to be reapplied. The main issue is 
with coating failure, said Garand.  Test panels are scheduled to be installed by the end of 
the month. 
 
b) Construction Payment Schedule 
 
Garand reviewed the Payments Summary Report. He said with this payment schedule the 
principal payment will stay the same, but the interest will come down.  The total project 
budgeted at $19,788,729.  The total project cost is $18,697.427.  The project is under 
budget by $1,091,302.      
 
 
c) Garand reviewed the W.P.C.F. 25-Year Projected Revenue & Expenses Schedule. He 
referred to the State Loan Repayment – Construction Expenses shown on page 1 of the 
report.  He said revenue is expected to be more than listed and expenses should be less. 
 
Garand said the Town of Mansfield’s annual flow is estimated at 7.25% of the total plant 
flow.  He then reviewed the proposed increases: The O&M Expenses will have a 2% per 
year increase.  The User Charge Increase Schedule will have a 2% increase every three 
years, beginning July 2015.  The Septage Rate Increase Schedule includes a 5% 
increase every 5 years, beginning July 2015.  Interest on Total Cash Reserves will be 
projected at 3.0%. 
 
Nita Giordano made a motion to endorse the W.P.C.F. 25-Year Revenue and Expense 
Schedule through Yr. 2036 as proposed, and supported by the Plant Superintendent.  The 
motion was seconded by Stanley Morytko. The motion carried unanimously. 
 



 4 

Plant Performance 
 
All permit requirements were met for December, 2011.  Garand then reviewed the 
December 2011 Effluent Quality Report. 
 
Administration & Finance  
 
a) Monthly Budget Report – Garand reviewed the Monthly Budget Report ending 
12/31/11.  He said revenues are $1,700,303.  This represents 50% of revenues collected 
with 50% of the year complete.  Expenses are$1,618,853.  This represents 48% of the 
budget expended with 50% of the year complete.  
 
b) A/R Aging Summary.  Wentworth Septic Service, LLC and Richard E. White & Sons 
continue to be in arrears, but are making payments.  They have been notified they are not 
allowed to discharge septage or grease at the facility until their outstanding balance is 
paid  down to less than 60 Days Past Due. 
 
c) Significant Non-recurring Expenses.  These expenses include construction costs with 
Carlin, Wright Pierce, and repairs to the Hycor Trunnion wheels, the 2008 Ford Ranger 
repairs, mower repairs, and seam welding on secondary clarifier. ( Reimbursable) 
 
d) Multi-Bank Securities Quarterly Report.  Garand reviewed the Multi-Bank 
Securities Brokerage Account Statement through 12/31/2011.  The ending account value 
is $11,422,880.27 (with an estimated annual interest income of $449,984.00). 
 
e) 2011 Connecticut Sewer Rate Survey.   The survey results indicate that residential 
users in Connecticut pay on average approximately $415 and $369 annually for water and 
sewer respectively.  This represents increases of 16.9% and 1% above the averages 
reported in the 2009 surveys.  Garand said in 2011 Windham sewer rates were 26% 
below State average.  The average sewer rate is $3.84 per HC ft, while Windham’s sewer 
rate was $2.84 per HC ft. 
 
f) Operator 1 Position.  At the last meeting Garand said one of the applicants has a 
degree in Environmental Science which would be extremely helpful in obtaining CT 
Operator certification.  The WPCA previously authorized the Plant Superintendent to fill 
a new Operator I position.  
 
g) N.E.W.E.A. Boston Conference Authorization.  Garand said he attended the 
N.E.W.E.A Conference and attended a meeting with the Clarifier vendor to try and 
resolve their non-cooperation regarding making a reimbursement payment to Windham 
for correcting one of the deficiencies with their design.  He said the issue is being 
resolved. 
 
Nita Giordano made a motion to authorize reimbursement in the amount of up to $475.00 
to the Plant Superintendent for out-of-pocket expenses incurred at the N.E.W.E.A. 
conference and Patti Lein seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.   



 5 

 
h) Misc.  – Donations:  $100.00 donation to Natchaug Hospital on behalf of Benjamin 
Deregla (employee’s brother) and $100.00 donation to American Cancer Society on 
behalf of Robert Macha (employee’s father).   
 
Garand gave the history on how this practice originated.  He said a $100.00 donation was 
made to St. Joseph’s Living Center when a WPCA member passed away.  He was living 
at the nursing facility and the WPCA held their monthly meetings there for several 
months prior to his passing.  When another WPCA member passed unexpectedly a 
$100.00 donation was given to a charity in his honor.  The practice expanded to family 
members of employees.  This was done by the WPCA to show their appreciation of 
WPCF employees. 
 
Nita Giordano said she had received a comment as to whether the WPCA was making 
donations using ratepayer’s money.  After some discussion a recommendation was made 
to establish a contingency fund which would be funded by the sewage haulers, and not 
rate payers for this type of a donation. 
 
Garand said he would discuss the issue with Attorney Rich Cody, draft a policy, and 
present it to the WPCA at the next meeting. 
 
Mary Burnore made a motion to donate $100.00 to Natchaug Hospital and $100.00 to the 
American Cancer Society as stated above.  Stanley Morytko seconded the motion.  
Voting in favor were Mary Burnore, Stan Morytko, Rene Goss and Nita Giordano.  Patti 
Lein abstained.  The motion carried. 
 
Customer Relations 
 
Garand reported that there were no blockages in the lines through Jan. 24, 2012.  He said 
there was a recent incident at Ivy Gardens with sewage going into the street.  Garand said 
we determined that it was not in our lines, and was the responsibility of a private party.  
Garand said he notified DEEP and North Central Health District of the incident. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:10 P.M.  Motion by Mary Burnore and seconded by Nita 
Giordano.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
                                                                             Respectfully submitted, 
 
                                                                              Lillian Murray, Clerk 
 
 
 
 


